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McCabe Russ (DOS)

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject: Clayton Info

Russ,

The Cullen ownership was interesting in that John Cullen subdivided the farm to his sons, William,
George, and Jonathan in 1772 and 1773. George Cullen brought it all back together when his brothers
and father predeceased him, George agreeing to sell the whole thing to Sydenham Thorne on 9 Feb 1785
but died before making sufficient deed. His son, John, completed the sale on 16 Aug 1787. Thorne died
in 1793. He left the mansion and farm to his nephew, Peter Caverly. Caverly is said to have been a
member of the Delaware House of Representatives in 1797. He was also said to be Delaware Auditor of
Accounts as early as 1799 and held that position until his resignation in 1815.

According to the Governor’s Register, Peter Caverly was appointed Lieut. Col. Commandant of the 6t
Regiment of the Delaware Militia in June of 1803. The Register confirms Caverly was Auditor of
Accounts in 1812 and that he resigned in 1815.

He moved to Dover in 1807 to assume the role of Cashier for the Farmer’s Bank after having been
appointed Director of this same institution along with many others like Jesse Green of Sussex. My
thought is that Caverly moved and needed a tenant for the mansion. Clayton may have been that
person.

John M. Clayton was born in 1796. He is said to have entered Yale at age 15. That would be 1811. He
is said to have graduated from Yale in 1815 and that he began law practice in Dover in 1819.

James Clayton purchased the Thorne property from Peter Caverly on 11 Nov 1811. Caverly was living
in Dover at the date of the indenture. At the time, Clayton was described as a Milford tanner. This
means to me that Clayton was established in the Milford area prior to his 1811 purchase. If James
Clayton and his family were at the mansion say by 1808, then John M. Clayton would have spent a
couple of boyhood years there.

James Clayton died intestate on 24 Nov 1820. His widow, Sarah, went before Kent County Orphan’s
Court on 20 Feb 1821 seeking her 1/3 dower in his lands.

Col. Benjamin Potter and his son, Edmund S. Potter, purchased the Thorne lands from the Commercial
Bank of Delaware on 9 Sep 1825. The land had been seized by the Kent County Sheriff and sold at
public auction on 25 Sep 1821 to the Commercial Bank of Delaware. They obviously were a major
creditor of Clayton.

. , . - . . . th
I reviewed Becky’s report again and can accept a67~‘6_03“constructlon or we just say mid-18 cent_ug\

Let me know if you have more questions to be answered. Also, let me know about 6/11 and/or 6/12
date. What is best for you? How do you feel about competing with the Antiques Market. Do you think
we should wait until the place is painted? The painter we had lined up back out. I am having Tom
Taylor look at the place on Friday. If he were to do it, he will not be able to tackle it until the fall. I
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learned to paint with Tom having worked with him one summer when I was in high school but it did not
occur to me to ask him until just this weekend.

Ralph
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McCabe Russ (DOS)

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject: Re: Silver Hill/Parson Thorne Marker

Russ,

Sorry it has taken so long to get this together but your questions were good and made me dig more. My
information is not complete with this response but this will give you something to think about while | gather more.

>>Was the “first dwelling here” constructed by Booth a portion of the present structure? Is >>the support for the
1730 date circumstantial or the result of architectural analysis?

Some background information:

Joseph Booth, who became styled as Gentleman, and who had been a Sussex County Magistrate, purchased
510 acres of Saw Mill Range from John Bowman, Jr., grandson of Henry Bowman, in May of 1730 (Kent Co.
Deed Books K-1, p. 33.

Volume K, p. 33 — 5 May 1730 deed between John Bowman son & heir of John Bowman late of Kent
Co, yeoman, decd, for 20 pounds heretofore paid to John Bowman the father and 2 pounds like money
paid to John Bowman the son, sold to Joseph Booth, Senr of same county, gentleman, a tract of land in
Mispelion Neck called the Saw Mill Range ... to Three Runs Branch ... to Clarks Branch ... 510 acres
... shall defend against claims of the heirs of Henry Bowman the grandfather and the heirs of John
Bowman the father. Witnesses: Jno Edmonds, DAD Rees. Acknowledged 13 May 1730.

The second wife of Joseph Booth, Sr, was Elinor, and they lived in Kent County as described in a 1729 deed for
the purchase of two lots in Dover. Vol. |, p. 204. The first wife of Joseph Booth had been Frances Spencer.

Booth made his will on 10 Dec 1732. This was more than two years after he had purchased part of Saw Mill
Range. His wife must have been dead by this time for he did not mention her in his will. He bequeathed to his
son, also Joseph Booth, “my dwelling plantation which I now live on.” He left his grandson, Thomas Booth, 100
acres "lying over the branch, being part of the land belonging to my dwelling plantation.” Thomas received an
additional 80 acres “commonly known by the name of the point.” Son, Joseph Booth, Jr., received the remainder
of the lands. This seems to clearly describe the lands at and in the vicinity of Parson Thorne Mansion today.
The point may be the peninsula poking into Silver Lake. The branch is probably Mullet Run.

Based upon the above information we can gather that Joseph Booth, Sr. had built a house upon the Parson
Thorne Mansion site by the time of his death at the end of 1732 (I assume it was around this time he died, | have
not found a probate date). He passed on all the land to his son Joseph, and grandson, Thomas.

Joseph Booth, Junior, died between January 4th and 8th of1736 of smallpox. He had become a Kent County
Justice of the Peace. One witness to the will in a deposition stated that Booth made his will at his house in
Murderkill Hundred. In his 1/4/1736 will, he gave son, Thomas Booth, 500 acres of Pemberton Savannah. He
gave to son, John Booth, the plantation that lay on Murther kill brook called Maidens Dowry. He then mentions
his son, Joseph Booth [the third], who was to receive half of “this plantation” and the arable land upon it. The
other half was to go to his wife, Mary. Whoever lived the longest, was to get the whole tract including arable land,
marsh, houses, and other items. Joseph Booth, Ill, was to also receive the remainder of the estate. The Saw Mill
Range portion did not appear to be mentioned specifically but it must have been a part of the estate remainder.

A 174_ administration on the Booth estate shows that his widow, Mary, had married George Morgan and that
Mary had died. Also, it showed that Booth had a mortgage with the Loan Office for part of Saw Mill Range.

Thomas Booth, died intestate prior to November of 1745.
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agrees in finite detail to the lease requirements. Mease Smith was guardian of young Benjamin Potter at this time
as well as Benjamin’s brother and two sisters. Benjamin and his brother came back to Delaware.

The Society has in its possession an 1863 “Map of the Fiddeman Farm” surveyed by John Stockley, Esq., of
Smyrna, Del. This shows a depiction of the house and the Gothic “A” gable is shown on the main part of the
house. So, we know part of the work was done by that time. Further, exterior paint analysis has revealed that
much of the exterior wood (especially that used in the change to Gothic Victorian dates to mid 191" century.

An August 1860 Kent County Mutual Insurance Company application by Henry B. Fiddeman shows that the
house was occupied as a dwelling by Gov. Wm Burton.

>When was the name Silver Hill “adopted/established”, and by whom?

Good guestion. Certainly by the late 1800s. We have a photo of the mansion that clearly dates to 1870 — 1880
time period that describes it as Silver Hill Farm (that | emailed you previously). Fiddeman and his daughter, Mary
Fiddeman Lofland, wife of Dr. Mark G. Lofland, owned it during this time (Dr. Benjamin Potter, Mary's first
husband, died shortly after their marriage). She married Dr. Lofland, second, and had children by him but none
by Potter. The Lofland’'s son, Henry Fiddeman Lofland, owned it after his mother.

>|s the property listed in the National Register?

Yes, it only has local significance but should have State significance at a miniumum.

>Any additional information ycu can provide would be much-appreciated.

i will follow up with some additional info — especially regarding the Cullens.
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